
Physical Address:  501 South Main Street  

Mailing Address:  PO Box 228   

Rhome, Texas 76078 
Telephone:  817‐636‐2462  

www.cityofrhome.com | citysecretary@cityofrhome.com 

"Crossroads to the Metroplex" 

Mayor 
Michelle Pittman 
Di Credico 

City Council 

Mayor Pro‐Tem, 
Place 3 
Elaine Priest 

Place 1 
Josh McCabe 

Place 2 
Kenny Crenshaw 

Place 4 
Sam Eason 

Place 5 
Leeanne 
Mackowski 

City 
Administrator 
Cynthia Northrop 

City Attorney 
Carvan Adkins 

City Secretary 
Shannon 
Montgomery 

Fire Chief 
Darrell Fitch 

Police Chief 
Sam Love 

Public Works 
Director 
Sean Densmore 

NOTICE OF REGULAR MEETING OF THE RHOME CITY COUNCIL  
Meeting Date: Tuesday, October 22, 2020 
Location:  VIA TELEPHONE CONFERENCE 

MEETING START TIME: 6:30 PM 
(Total Estimated Meeting Time 1 hr 5 mins)

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN in accordance with order of the Office of the Governor issued March 16, 
2020, and most recently extended on October 7, 2020, the City Council of the City of Rhome will 
conduct  its Regular Meeting scheduled for 6:30pm on Thursday, October 22, 2020, by telephone 
conference in order to advance the public health goal of limiting face‐to‐face meetings (also called 
“social distancing”) to slow the spread of the Coronavirus (COVID‐19).   

This meeting will be closed to in person attendance by the public. 

A temporary suspension of the Open Meetings Act to allow telephone or videoconference public 
meetings has been granted by Governor Greg Abbott. These actions are being taken to mitigate the 
spread of COVID‐19 by avoiding meetings that bring people into a group setting and in accordance 
with Section 418.016 of the Texas Government Code.  

Telephonic and videoconferencing capabilities will be utilized  to allow  individuals  to address  the 
Council.    Members  of  the  public  are  entitled  to  participate  remotely  via  GoToMeeting 
Teleconferencing.  Citizens may join the GoToMeeting:  

Special City Council Meeting  
Thursday, October 22, 2020 6:30PM (CDT)  

You can dial in using your phone. 
United States (Toll Free): 1 866 899 4679 
United States: +1 (571) 317‐3116 

Access Code: 779‐368‐773 

Members of the public who wish to submit written comments on a listed agenda item must submit 
their comments to citysecretary@cityofrhome.com no later than 4:00pm on day of meeting. 

The public will be permitted to offer public comments telephonically as provided by the agenda and 
as permitted by the presiding officer during the meeting.   

This meeting will be recorded and the recording will be available to the public in accordance with 
the Open Meetings Act upon written request.  

Call to Order and Establish a Quorum (Estimated 1 min) 

Public Presentations and Input (Estimated Time Varies) 
The Council is not permitted to take action on or discuss any presentations made to the Council at 
this time concerning an item not listed on the agenda.  The Council will hear comments during this 
designated  time.   Request  form, or email, must be  submitted  to  the City Secretary,  via email  to 
citysecretary@cityofrhome.com, prior to 4:00pm to be recognized. 



Announcements from Mayor and Council Members (Estimated 2 min) 

A. November 2020 Events:

 Early Voting continues through Friday, October 30, 2020 – times and locations are online at www.cityofrhome.com

 Municipal Court Week Proclamation – Week of November 2‐6, 2020

 Election Day – Tuesday, November 3, 2020

 Veterans Day – Wednesday, November 11, 2020 – City Offices Closed

Regular Session – Old Business 

B. Update, discussion and any necessary action regarding latest developments for COVID‐19 and mitigation efforts and
actions within the City (Estimated 2 min)

C. Update, discussion, and any necessary action regarding Municipal Complex Project (Estimated 2 min)

D. Update, discussion and any necessary action regarding Master Thoroughfare Plan Project (Estimated 2 min)

E. Update, discussion and any necessary action regarding UTA’s report on the Parks Master Plan (Estimated 10 min)

F. Update, discussion and any necessary action regarding Water Source/Rate Study (Estimated 2 min)

G. Discussion and any necessary action regarding filling vacancies on the Planning & Zoning Commission (Estimated 5
min)

Public Hearing 

H. Rhome City Council to conduct a Public Hearing to consider a request for a Carport at property being described as
Legal: Acres: 0.209, Lot: 2, Blk: 1, Subd: ROLLING HILLS ADDITION also known as 321 Redbud, Rhome, Texas 76078
(Estimated 5 min)

Regular Session – New Business  

I. Discussion and any necessary action regarding a request for a Carport at legal property being Legal: Acres: 0.209, Lot:
2, Blk: 1, Subd: ROLLING HILLS ADDITION also known as 321 Redbud, Rhome, Texas 76078 (Estimated 5 min)

J. Discussion  and  any  necessary  action  regarding  the  awarding  of  Solid Waste  Collection  Contract  and  notice  of
cancellation of existing contract, if applicable (Estimated 10 min)

K. Discussion and any necessary action regarding amendment to Rolling V pre‐development and services agreement with
PMB Capital (Estimated 5 min)

L. Discussion and any necessary action regarding traffic concerns along Main Street and BC Rhome (Estimated 5 min)

M. Discussion and any necessary action regarding submitting request for Coronavirus Relief Funds (CRF) reimbursement
and authorizing the Mayor to expend funds for the City’s remaining allotment (Estimated 5 min)

Consent Agenda (Estimated 2 min) 
All items under this section are recommended for approval for the Consent Agenda.  These items are of a routine nature 
and require only brief deliberation by Council.  Council reserves the right to remove any item on the Consent Agenda for 
further deliberation. 

N. Minutes of City Council Special Session dated October 13, 2020

O. Interlocal Agreement with Wise County for Road Repairs

October 22, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 2 of 74



Future Agenda Items (Estimated 1 min) 

Adjourn (Estimated 1 min) 

A quorum of Planning & Zoning Commissioners may be present at this meeting and its members may participate in 
the discussions of the items on the agenda over which they have responsibilities or authority. 

A quorum of Parks & Recreation Board Members may be present at this meeting and its members may participate in 
the discussions of the items on the agenda over which they have responsibilities or authority. 

*Pursuant  to  the Open Meetings Act, Chapter 551,  Section 551.071 of  the Texas Government Code,  the Council may
convene into executive session at any time during the meeting if a need rises for the City Council to seek advice from the
City Attorney concerning any item on this agenda, to discuss pending and contemplated litigation, or a settlement offer,
or to discuss a matter in which the duty of the attorney to the City Council under the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional
Conduct of the State Board of Texas clearly conflicts with Chapter 551.

The Council may vote and / or act upon each of the items listed in this Agenda.  Except for Public Presentation and Input 
and items in the Agenda designated as public hearing or otherwise designated for public input, there will be no public input 
during the course of this meeting without express authorization from the presiding officer.   

This  facility  is wheelchair  accessible  and  accessible  parking  spaces  are  available.    Requests  for  accommodations  or 
interpretive services must be made 48 hours prior to the meeting.   Please contact City Hall at 817‐636‐2462 for further 
information.   

CERTIFICATION:  I do hereby certify  that  the above City Council Agenda was posted on  the designated bulletin board 
located at City Hall, 501 South Main Street, Rhome, Texas by 6:00 pm on the 19th day of October 2020. 

________________________________ 
Shannon Montgomery, TRMC, City Secretary 

I certify that the attached notice and agenda of items to be considered by the Rhome City Council was removed by me 
from the designated bulletin board located at City Hall, 501 South Main Street, Rhome, Texas, on the __________ day of 
____________________________, 2020.   

________________________________________________, Title: _________________________________________ 

October 22, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 3 of 74



AGENDA ITEM - A 

October 22, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 4 of 74



 

 

Proclamation 
Of Recognition 

From the City of Rhome 
IN RECOGNITION OF MUNICIPAL COURT WEEK 

November 2‐6, 2020 

A PROCLAMATION RECOGNIZING THE IMPORTANCE OF MUNICIPAL COURTS, MUNICIPAL COURT CLERKS, THE 
RULE OF LAW, AND THE FAIR AND IMPARTIAL ADMINISTRATION OF JUSTICE 

WHEREAS, municipal courts play a significant role in preserving public safety and promoting quality of life in 
Texas;  

WHEREAS, more people come  in contact with municipal courts  than all other Texas courts combined and 
public  impression of  the Texas  judicial system  is  largely dependent upon  the public’s experience  in municipal 
court; 

WHEREAS,  state  law authorizes a municipality  to either appoint or elect a municipal  judge  for a  term of 
office, the Rhome Municipal Court is a state court and its judges are members of the state judiciary; 

WHEREAS,  the procedures  for  the Rhome Municipal Court operations are  set  forth  in  the Texas Code of 
Criminal Procedure and other laws of the State of Texas; 

WHEREAS, the City of Rhome is committed to the notion that our legal system is based on the principle that 
an  independent, fair, and competent judiciary will  interpret and apply the  laws that govern us and that judges 
and court personnel should comply with  the  law and act  in a manner  that promotes public confidence  in  the 
integrity and impartiality of the judiciary; 

WHEREAS, Rhome Municipal Judges are not policy makers for the City of Rhome but are bound by the law 
and the Canons of Judicial Conduct and are required to make decisions  independent of the governing body of 
the City Council, city officials, and employees; 

WHEREAS,  the  City  Council  recognizes  that  the  Constitution  and  laws  of  the  State  of  Texas  contain 
procedural  safeguards  in  criminal  cases  for  all  defendants,  including  indigent  defendants,  and  supports  the 
Rhome Municipal Court in complying with such legal requirements.  

NOW,  THEREFORE  BE  IT  RESOLVED  by  the  City  Council  of  the  City  of  Rhome,  Texas  that  the week  of 
November  2‐6,  2020  is  hereby  recognized  as Municipal  Court Week  in  recognition  of  the  fair  and  impartial 
justice offered  to our  citizens by  the City of Rhome Municipal Court and  further extends appreciation  to our 
Municipal Court Clerk, Kristi Adams, and  to all Municipal Court Clerks  for  the vital  services  they perform and 
their exemplary dedication to the communities they represent. 

Office of the Mayor, City of Rhome, County of Wise, State of Texas 

In Witness Thereof, I have hereunto set my hand this 22nd day of October 2020, and caused 
this seal to be affixed. 

_____________________________  
         Michelle Pittman Di Credico, Mayor 

October 22, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 5 of 74



AGENDA ITEM - E 

 

October 22, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 6 of 74



Rhome Parks, Recreation, & Open 
Space Master Plan

Draft Final Report: Implementation 
Strategies

Institute of Urban Studies
October 15, 2020

October 22, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 7 of 74



Implementations Strategies
• Implementation strategies - Prioritization of the PROS Proposals, includes needs of existing park facilities, an 

implementation within a reasonable timeframe, funding strategies, cost estimates for the proposals, a feedback, 
monitoring and evaluation plan to determine the success of the plan.

• Implementation matrix - outlines the actionable steps take to strategically achieve goals within the 10-year planning 
period. The matrix outlines the order of priority, the recommended actions to take in sequential order, the purpose for 
the action and responsible entities, and expected timeframe for accomplishing these goals.

The 10-year planning period is categorized into three timespans: Short-term (1 to 4 years), Medium-term (4 to 7 years), 
and Long-term (7-10 years)

• Funding Strategies - The funding strategies are external funding resources and services to help support the PROS 
proposals and goals which include grants, federal low interest loan programs, and cost participation partnering 
opportunities with various entities( Northwest ISD and Wise County).

• Proposal Cost Estimates -The cost of implementing each of the PROS proposals greatly varies and depends on local 
market trends and design and construction costs. These costs do not include design or full construction costs and 
recommended that all cost estimates carry a 30% contingency fee.

October 22, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 8 of 74



Name
Total 
Area
(AC)

Area in the 
Flood Plain 

(AC)

Useable 
Area 
(AC)

Prioritization 
Ranking

(Smallest to Largest)

Rhome 
Veterans 
Memorial Park

0.165 0 0.165 1

PP4 0.346 0 0.346 2
PP1 0.899 0 0.899 3
PP6 1.784 0 1.784 4
Rhome Family 
Park 1.863 0 1.863 5

PP3 11.07 6.16 6.16 6
PP2 14.53 7.8 7.8 7
PP5 39.63 22.9 22.9 8

PROS Prioritization –
By Park Size

October 22, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 9 of 74



PROS Prioritization –
By Park Size

Name
Total 
Area
(AC)

Area in the 
Flood Plain 

(AC)

Useable 
Area 
(AC)

Prioritization 
Ranking

(Smallest to Largest)

Rhome 
Veterans 
Memorial Park

0.165 0 0.165 1

PP4 0.346 0 0.346 2
PP1 0.899 0 0.899 3
PP6 1.784 0 1.784 4
Rhome Family 
Park 1.863 0 1.863 5

PP3 11.07 6.16 6.16 6
PP2 14.53 7.8 7.8 7
PP5 39.63 22.9 22.9 8

October 22, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 10 of 74



Prioritization – Desired Park Amenity

Park Name Prioritization 
Ranking

Rhome Family Park 1
PP3 2
PP2 3
PP1 4
PP6 5
PP4 6
PP5 7
Rhome Veterans Memorial 8

PROS Prioritization –
By Desired PROS Amenities

16.2%
13.5%

13.0%
15.4%

9.6%
7.1%

14.8%
7.7%

2.7%

0% 5% 10% 15% 20%

WALKING/JOGGING TRAILS

MULTI-USE COURTS (BASKETBALL, TENNIS, …

OPEN SPACE

PLAYGROUNDS (ADVENTURE PLAYGROUND)

DISABILITY-FRIENDLY AMENITIES (ALL-ABILITIES …

INDOOR RECREATION CENTER

SPLASHPADS AND SPRAYGROUNDS

STAGE/PERFORMANCE AREA/DANCE AREA

OTHER

PERCENTAGE (%)

RHOME PUBLIC SURVEY: RESULTS OF DESIRED PROS AMENITIES

RHOME FOCUS GROUP RESULTS

October 22, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 11 of 74



PROS Prioritization - Equity
Park Name Prioritization Ranking
PP1 1
PP4 2
Rhome Family Park 3
PP3 4
PP6 5
PP2 6
Rhome Veterans Memorial 7
PP5 8

PROS Prioritization –
By Equity

October 22, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 12 of 74



13

11

6October 22, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 13 of 74



Implementation Matrix Timeframe

Action Purpose Responsible 
Entities

Short-Term
(1 to 4 years)

Medium-Term
(4-7 years)

Long-Term
(7-10 
years)

Rh
om

e 
Fa

m
ily

 P
ar

k

1
Address O&M needs of existing park 
facilities (e.g. upgrades to playground 
surfacing, repairs, etc.)

To ensure park equipment is up-to-date and safe 
for park users

City of Rhome
X

2
Upgrade park facilities based on available 
general funds (e.g. shade structures, 
benches, etc.)

To address the recreational desires of the citizens 
in the short-term

City of Rhome
X

3
Identify desired park improvements to add 
to Capital Improvement Plan (CIP)

To finance parks proposals goals City of Rhome, 
Parks 
Committee

X

4

Public engagement and community 
outreach

Design feedback, recruiting volunteers, 
establishing long-term citizen management 
groups (e.g. Friends of the Park, Park 
Conservancies, Private-Public Partnerships, etc.)

City of Rhome, 
Parks 
Committee, 
Citizen 
Volunteers

X

5
Coordinate with relevant agencies and 
organizations for desired park amenities 
(e.g. TPWD, Kaboom, Wise County, etc.)

To seek guidance and assistance with desired park 
amenity implementation

City of Rhome
X X

6 Issue Request for Proposal (RFP) To solicit bids for design and construction 
documents, etc.

City of Rhome X X

7

Apply for grants and other applicable 
funding resources (e.g. TPWD, Kaboom, 
TxDOT, etc.)

To fund projects or to receive partial 
reimbursement for projects

City of Rhome, 
Parks 
Committee, 
Citizen 
Volunteers

X X

8 Award Project Construction City of Rhome X X
Overall Proposal Timeframe X X

October 22, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 14 of 74



5

6

2

October 22, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 15 of 74



Potential Park 6 Cost Estimate

Facility Type Amenity Quantity Size (sf) Construction Cost Maintenance Cost

Exercise Area x 500 $ 12,210 $ 71

Multi-court Purpose x

Open Area Small x 4000 $ 7,396

Picnic Area Small x

Playgrounds (including All-Abilities & Adventure Playgrounds) 
Small x 2500 $ 152,425 $ 5,000

Shelters Small x 1 589 $ 25,000 $ 3,029

Trail Small x

Gardens Small (less than 15 plots) x 2 1400 $ 5,000 $ 500

Totals $ 202,031 $ 8,600

Project Contingency 30% $ 60,609

Project Cost Estimate $ 262,640

Cost Estimation: Potential Park 6 –
By Well Estates Neighborhood Park

October 22, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 16 of 74



Po
te

nt
ia

l P
ar

k 
6:

 B
y 

W
el

l E
st

at
es

 N
ei

gh
bo

rh
oo

d 
Pa

rk
Implementation Matrix Timeframe

Action Purpose Responsible 
Entities

Short-Term
(1 to 4 years)

Medium-Term
(4-7 years)

Long-Term
(7-10 years)

1

Coordinate with relevant impacted entities 
(e.g. Northwest ISD, land developers, adjacent 
property owners, municipal departments, 
neighboring cities, etc.)

To establish land agreements, joint-use 
agreements, determining access and 
other impacts due to development, etc.

City of Rhome

X

2
Identify desired park improvements to add to 
Capital Improvement Plan (CIP)

To finance parks proposals goals City of Rhome, 
Parks Committee X

3

Public engagement and community outreach Design feedback, recruiting volunteers, 
establishing long-term citizen 
management groups (e.g. Friends of 
the Park, Park Conservancies, Private-
Public Partnerships, etc.)

City of Rhome, 
Parks Committee, 
Citizen Volunteers

X

4
Coordinate with relevant agencies and 
organizations for desired park amenities (e.g. 
TPWD, Kaboom, Wise County, etc.)

To seek guidance and assistance with 
desired park amenity implementation

City of Rhome
X

5
Issue Request for Proposal (RFP) To solicit bids for design and 

construction documents, etc.
City of Rhome

X X

6
Apply for grants and other applicable funding 
resources (e.g. TPWD, Kaboom, TxDOT, etc.)

To fund projects or to receive partial 
reimbursement for projects

City of Rhome, 
Parks Committee, 
Citizen Volunteers

X X

7 Award Project Construction City of Rhome X X

Overall Proposal Timeframe X X
October 22, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 17 of 74



October 22, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 18 of 74



Potential Park 4 Cost Estimate
Facility Type Amenity Quantity Size Construction Cost Maintenance Cost

Color Design/Walkway x 500 $ 3,654 $ -

Open Area Small x 1 1500 $ 2,774 $ 678 

Picnic Area Small x 500 $ 2,453 $ 94 

Playgrounds (including All-Abilities & Adventure 
Playgrounds) Small x 1 800 $ 48,776 $ 1,600 

Shelters Small x 2 589 $ 50,000 $ 1,110 

Trail Small x 2966 $ 12,116 $ 1,483 

Gardens Small (less than 15 plots) x 600 $ 2,143 $ 214 

Totals $ 121,915 $ 5,180

Project Contingency 30% $ 36,575

Project Cost Estimate $ 158,490

Cost Estimation: Potential Park 4 –
Morris and Old Mill Pocket Park

October 22, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 19 of 74



Implementation Matrix Timeframe

Action Purpose Responsible Entities Short-Term
(1 to 4 years)

Medium-
Term

(4-7 years)

Long-Term
(7-10 years)

Po
te

nt
ia

l P
ar

k 
4:

 M
or

ris
 &

 O
ld

 M
ill

 P
oc

ke
t P

ar
k

1

Coordinate with relevant impacted 
entities (e.g. Northwest ISD, land 
developers, adjacent property 
owners, municipal departments, 
neighboring cities, etc.)

To establish land agreements, joint-use 
agreements, determining access and other impacts 
due to development, etc.

City of Rhome

X

2
Identify desired park 
improvements to add to Capital 
Improvement Plan (CIP)

To finance parks proposals goals City of Rhome, Parks 
Committee X

3

Public engagement and community 
outreach

Design feedback, recruiting volunteers, 
establishing long-term citizen management groups 
(e.g. Friends of the Park, Park Conservancies, 
Private-Public Partnerships, etc.)

City of Rhome, Parks 
Committee, Citizen 
Volunteers X

4

Coordinate with relevant agencies 
and organizations for desired park 
amenities (e.g. TPWD, Kaboom, 
Wise County, etc.)

To seek guidance and assistance with desired park 
amenity implementation

City of Rhome

X

5
Issue Request for Proposal (RFP) To solicit bids for design and construction 

documents, etc.
City of Rhome

X X

6
Apply for grants and other 
applicable funding resources (e.g. 
TPWD, Kaboom, TxDOT, etc.)

To fund projects or to receive partial 
reimbursement for projects

City of Rhome, Parks 
Committee, Citizen 
Volunteers

X X

7 Award Project Construction City of Rhome X X

Overall Proposal Timeframe X X
October 22, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 20 of 74



4

4
October 22, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 21 of 74



POTENTIAL PARK 1 COST ESTIMATE

Facility Type Amenity Quantity Size (SF) Est. Construction Cost Est. Annual Maintenance Cost

Exercise Area x 1 200 $ 4,884 $ 92

Open Space Small x 1 2000 $ 3,698 $ 904

Picnic Area Small x 2 1000 $ 4,907 $ 610

Playground (including All-Abilities & Adventure) Small x 1 1987 $ 121,154 $ 3,974

Shelters Small x 1 589 $ - $ -

Gardens (community gardens, healing gardens, native 
gardens, etc.) Small x 2 400.00 $ 1,429 $ 143

Totals $ 136,071 $ 5,723

Project Contingency 30% $ 40,821

Project Cost Estimate $ 176,893

Cost Estimation: Potential Park 1 –
Elm Street Pocket Park

October 22, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 22 of 74



Implementation Matrix Timeframe

Action Purpose Responsible 
Entities

Short-Term
(1 to 4 years)

Medium-
Term

(4-7 years)

Long-Term
(7-10 
years)

Po
te

nt
ia

l P
ar

k 
1:

 E
lm

 S
tr

ee
t P

oc
ke

t P
ar

k 1

Coordinate with relevant impacted 
entities (e.g. Northwest ISD, land 
developers, adjacent property 
owners, municipal departments, 
neighboring cities, etc.)

To establish land agreements, joint-use agreements, 
determining access and other impacts due to 
development, etc.

City of Rhome

X

2

Identify desired park improvements 
to add to Capital Improvement Plan 
(CIP)

To finance parks proposals goals City of Rhome, 
Parks Committee X X

3

Public engagement and community 
outreach

Design feedback, recruiting volunteers, establishing 
long-term citizen management groups (e.g. Friends of 
the Park, Park Conservancies, Private-Public 
Partnerships, etc.)

City of Rhome, 
Parks Committee, 
Citizen Volunteers X X

4

Coordinate with relevant agencies 
and organizations for desired park 
amenities (e.g. TPWD, Kaboom, Wise 
County, etc.)

To seek guidance and assistance with desired park 
amenity implementation

City of Rhome

X X

5
Issue Request for Proposal (RFP) To solicit bids for design and construction documents, 

etc.
City of Rhome

X X

6
Apply for grants and other applicable 
funding resources (e.g. TPWD, 
Kaboom, TxDOT, etc.)

To fund projects or to receive partial reimbursement for 
projects

City of Rhome, 
Parks Committee, 
Citizen Volunteers

X

7
Award Project Construction City of Rhome

X

Overall Proposal Timeframe X X
October 22, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 23 of 74



October 22, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 24 of 74



Implementation Matrix Timeframe

Action Purpose Responsible 
Entities

Short-Term
(1 to 4 years)

Medium-
Term

(4-7 years)

Long-Term
(7-10 
years)

Rh
om

e 
Ve

te
ra

ns
 M

em
or

ia
l

1
Address O&M needs of existing park facilities (e.g. 
upgrades to playground surfacing, repairs, etc.)

To ensure park equipment is up-to-date 
and safe for park users

City of Rhome
X

2
Upgrade park facilities based on available general 
funds (e.g. shade structures, benches, etc.)

To address the recreational desires of 
the citizens in the short-term

City of Rhome
X

3
Identify desired park improvements to add to 
Capital Improvement Plan (CIP)

To finance parks proposals goals City of Rhome, 
Parks Committee X

4

Public engagement and community outreach Design feedback, recruiting volunteers, 
establishing long-term citizen 
management groups (e.g. Friends of the 
Park, Park Conservancies, Private-Public 
Partnerships, etc.)

City of Rhome, 
Parks Committee, 
Citizen Volunteers X

5
Coordinate with relevant agencies and 
organizations for desired park amenities (e.g. 
TPWD, Kaboom, Wise County, etc.)

To seek guidance and assistance with 
desired park amenity implementation

City of Rhome
X

6
Issue Request for Proposal (RFP) To solicit bids for design and 

construction documents, etc.
City of Rhome

X

7

Apply for grants and other applicable funding 
resources (e.g. TPWD, Kaboom, TxDOT, etc.)

To fund projects or to receive partial 
reimbursement for projects

City of Rhome, 
Parks Committee, 
Citizen Volunteers

X

8
Award Project Construction City of Rhome

X

Overall Proposal Timeframe X
October 22, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 25 of 74



October 22, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 26 of 74



Implementation Matrix Timeframe

Action Purpose Responsible 
Entities

Short-Term
(1 to 4 years)

Medium-
Term

(4-7 years)

Long-Term
(7-10 
years)

Po
te

nt
ia

l P
ar

k 
5:

 B
y 

W
el

l E
st

at
es

 C
om

m
un

ity
 P

ar
k

1

Coordinate with relevant impacted entities (e.g. 
Northwest ISD, land developers, adjacent property 
owners, municipal departments, neighboring cities, 
etc.)

To establish land agreements, joint-
use agreements, determining access 
and other impacts due to 
development, etc.

City of Rhome

X

2
Identify desired park improvements to add to 
Capital Improvement Plan (CIP)

To finance parks proposals goals City of Rhome, 
Parks Committee X

3

Public engagement and community outreach Design feedback, recruiting 
volunteers, establishing long-term 
citizen management groups (e.g. 
Friends of the Park, Park 
Conservancies, Private-Public 
Partnerships, etc.)

City of Rhome, 
Parks Committee, 
Citizen Volunteers

X

4
Coordinate with relevant agencies and 
organizations for desired park amenities (e.g. 
TPWD, Kaboom, Wise County, etc.)

To seek guidance and assistance 
with desired park amenity 
implementation

City of Rhome
X X

5
Issue Request for Proposal (RFP) To solicit bids for design and 

construction documents, etc.
City of Rhome

X

6

Apply for grants and other applicable funding 
resources (e.g. TPWD, Kaboom, TxDOT, etc.)

To fund projects or to receive partial 
reimbursement for projects

City of Rhome, 
Parks Committee, 
Citizen Volunteers

X

7
Award Project Construction City of Rhome

X

Overall Proposal Timeframe X X

October 22, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 27 of 74



October 22, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 28 of 74



Implementation Matrix Timeframe

Action Purpose Responsible 
Entities

Short-Term
(1 to 4 years)

Medium-
Term

(4-7 years)

Long-Term
(7-10 
years)

Po
te

nt
ia

l P
ar

k 
2:

 E
lli

s N
ei

gh
bo

rh
oo

d-
Co

m
m

un
ity

 P
ar

k

1

Coordinate with relevant impacted entities 
(e.g. Northwest ISD, land developers, 
adjacent property owners, municipal 
departments, neighboring cities, etc.)

To establish land agreements, joint-use 
agreements, determining access and other 
impacts due to development, etc.

City of Rhome

X

2
Identify desired park improvements to add 
to Capital Improvement Plan (CIP)

To finance parks proposals goals City of Rhome, 
Parks Committee X X

3

Public engagement and community 
outreach

Design feedback, recruiting volunteers, 
establishing long-term citizen management 
groups (e.g. Friends of the Park, Park 
Conservancies, Private-Public Partnerships, 
etc.)

City of Rhome, 
Parks Committee, 
Citizen Volunteers

X

4
Coordinate with relevant agencies and 
organizations for desired park amenities 
(e.g. TPWD, Kaboom, Wise County, etc.)

To seek guidance and assistance with 
desired park amenity implementation

City of Rhome
X X

5
Issue Request for Proposal (RFP) To solicit bids for design and construction 

documents, etc.
City of Rhome

X X

6

Apply for grants and other applicable 
funding resources (e.g. TPWD, Kaboom, 
TxDOT, etc.)

To fund projects or to receive partial 
reimbursement for projects

City of Rhome, 
Parks Committee, 
Citizen Volunteers

X X

7 Award Project Construction City of Rhome X
Overall Proposal Timeframe X X

October 22, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 29 of 74



October 22, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 30 of 74



Implementation Matrix Timeframe

Action Purpose Responsible 
Entities

Short-Term
(1 to 4 years)

Medium-
Term

(4-7 years)

Long-Term
(7-10 
years)

Po
te

nt
ia

l P
ar

k 
3:

 P
ra

iri
e 

Po
in

t C
om

m
un

ity
 P

ar
k 1

Coordinate with relevant impacted entities 
(e.g. Northwest ISD, land developers, 
adjacent property owners, municipal 
departments, neighboring cities, etc.)

To establish land agreements, joint-use 
agreements, determining access and other impacts 
due to development, etc.

City of Rhome

X

2
Identify desired park improvements to add 
to Capital Improvement Plan (CIP)

To finance parks proposals goals City of Rhome, 
Parks Committee X X

3

Public engagement and community 
outreach

Design feedback, recruiting volunteers, establishing 
long-term citizen management groups (e.g. Friends 
of the Park, Park Conservancies, Private-Public 
Partnerships, etc.)

City of Rhome, 
Parks Committee, 
Citizen Volunteers X

4

Coordinate with relevant agencies and 
organizations for desired park amenities 
(e.g. TPWD, Kaboom, Wise County, etc.)

To seek guidance and assistance with desired park 
amenity implementation

City of Rhome

X

5
Issue Request for Proposal (RFP) To solicit bids for design and construction 

documents, etc.
City of Rhome

X

6

Apply for grants and other applicable 
funding resources (e.g. TPWD, Kaboom, 
TxDOT, etc.)

To fund projects or to receive partial 
reimbursement for projects

City of Rhome, 
Parks Committee, 
Citizen Volunteers

X X

7 Award Project Construction City of Rhome X X
Overall Proposal Timeframe X X

October 22, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 31 of 74



Cost Estimates –
Functional Park Facilities

Average Market Cost of Commercial Grade Functional 
Facilities

Item Value
Dog Waste Station $ 400
Benches $ 600
Picnic Tables $ 700
Shade Structure Small 
(10'x10') $ 3,000

Shade Structure Medium 
(26'x26') $ 7,000

Shade Structure Large 
(40x40) $ 12,000

Bike Racks $ 800
Trash Cans $ 400
Recycling Bins $ 300
Pedestal Park Grills $ 300
Commercial Water 
Fountains $ 4,000

Wayfinding Signage $ 500

1.1%
3.8%
4.1%

4.5%
5.5%

7.4%
8.4%

9.6%
10.3%
10.3%
10.3%

11.4%
13.5%

0% 2% 4% 6% 8% 10% 12% 14%

OTHER

CONCESSION AREAS

RECYCLING STATIONS

PARKING

LIGHTING (FOR EVENING ACTIVITIES)

DOGGY WASTE STATIONS

RESTROOMS

PERCENTAGE (%)

Rhome Public Survey Q10: What kind of functional park 
facilities are most needed in Rhome’s Parks? 

October 22, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 32 of 74



Facility Type

Mean Size of 
Observed Park 
Activity Zones 

(SF)

Construction Cost 
Estimate

(Adjusted 2020 
dollars)

Annual Maintenance 
Cost Estimate 

(Adjusted 2020 
dollars)

Construction Cost 
per SF (2020 

dollars)

Annual 
Maintenance Cost 

per SF (2020 
dollars)

Amphitheater 3,215 $ 60,577.1 $ 6,057.8 $ 18.8 $ 1.9
Basketball Large 12,588 $ 72,692.8 $ 6,057.8 $ 5.8 $ 1.9
Basketball Medium 6,985 $ 36,345.8 $ 3,028.9 $ 5.2 $ 0.9
Basketball Small 2,884 $ 18,173.5 $ 3,028.9 $ 6.3 $ 0.9
Football Area 58,718 $ 121,154.3 $ 18,173.5 $ 2.1 $ 5.7
Handball Court 13,914 $ 12,115.7 $ 12,115.7 $ 0.9 $ 3.8
Multi-court Purpose 6,215 $ 24,231.3 $ 3,028.9 $ 3.9 $ 0.9
Playgrounds Large 18,700 $ 605,769.2 $ 30,288.0 $ 32.4 $ 9.4
Playgrounds Medium 5,853 $ 302,884.6 $ 15,144.6 $ 51.7 $ 4.7
Playgrounds Small 1,987 $ 121,154.3 $ 6,057.8 $ 61.0 $ 2.0
Swimming Pool 4,494 $ 8,480,768.7 $ - $ 1,887.0 $ -
Splashpad 3,500 $ 350,000.0 $ 15,500.0 $ 100.0 $ 4.4
Racquetball Courts 5,434 $ 145,384.5 $ 1,817.8 $ 26.8 $ 0.6
Rink/skate 19,333 $ 145,384.5 $ 6,057.8 $ 7.5 $ 1.9

Cost Estimates –
Average Cost of Park Amenities

October 22, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 33 of 74



Facility Type
Mean Size of 

Observed Park 
Activity Zones (SF)

Construction Cost 
Estimate

(Adjusted 2020 
dollars)

Annual 
Maintenance Cost 
Estimate (Adjusted 

2020 dollars)

Construction Cost per 
SF (2020 dollars)

Annual Maintenance 
Cost per SF (2020 

dollars)

Soccer Field Large 77,652 $ 139,326.6 $ 24,231.3 $ 1.8 $ 7.5
Soccer Field 
Medium

25,221 $ 90,865.2 $ 18,173.5 $ 3.6 $ 5.7

Soccer Field Small 20,648 $ 48,461.5 $ 9,086.7 $ 2.3 $ 2.8
Softball/Baseball 
Field Large

61,086 $ 484,614.9 $ 24,231.3 $ 7.9 $ 7.5

Softball/Baseball 
Field Medium

33,546 $ 363,461.7 $ 18,173.5 $ 10.8 $ 5.7

Softball/Baseball 
Field Small

20,141 $ 242,307.5 $ 12,115.7 $ 12.0 $ 3.8

Tennis Court Large 56,211 $ 327,115.9 $ 30,288.0 $ 5.8 $ 9.4
Tennis Court 
Medium

28,973 $ 218,077.3 $ 18,173.5 $ 7.5 $ 5.7

Tennis Court Small 16,309 $ 109,038.6 $ 9,086.7 $ 6.7 $ 2.8
Track 22,657 $ 484,614.9 $ 72,692.8 $ 21.4 $ 22.6
Trail Large 41,769 $ 181,730.3 $ 0.6 $ 4.4 $ 0.5
Trail Medium 8,354 $ 36,345.8 $ 0.5 $ 4.4 $ 0.5
Trail Small 2,966 $ 12,115.7 $ 0.4 $ 4.1 $ 0.5
Volleyball Large 8,845 $ 242,307.5 $ 24,231.3 $ 27.4 $ 7.5
Volleyball Medium 4,309 $ 121,154.3 $ 12,115.7 $ 28.1 $ 3.8
Volleyball Small 2,651 $ 60,577.1 $ 6,057.8 $ 22.8 $ 1.9

Cost Estimates –
Average Cost of Park Amenities (Cont.)

October 22, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 34 of 74



Name Entity Type Services Grant Amount Deadline
1 Local Parks Small Community 

Recreation
(Local Parks Grants)

TPWD Outdoor Park Amenit
ies

Assists local units of government with the acquisition and/or 
development of public recreation areas

Up to $150,000 11/6

2 Local Parks Non-Urban Outdoor 
Recreation
(Local Parks Grants)

TPWD Outdoor Park Amenit
ies

Assists local units of government with the acquisition and/or 
development of public recreation areas .

Up to $750,000 11/6

3 Recreational Trails Grants TPWD Trails & Paths Funds can be spent on both motorized and non-motorized 
recreational trail projects such as the construction of new 
recreational trails, improvements to existing trails, development of 
trailheads or trailside facilities, and assistance with acquiring trail 
corridors.

Reimbursement up to 80% 
of project cost 
,maximum of $200,000 for non-
motorized trail grants/maximum 
award of $400,000 for 
motorized trail grants

2/1

4 Community Outdoor Outreach 
Program
(CO-OP)

TPWD Park Activities Grant funding for programming that introduces under-served 
populations to environmental and conservation programs as well 
as TPWD mission oriented outdoor activities.

Up to $50,000 11/6

5 Adventure Courses KABOO
M

Teen Playground Design and build an amazing play space aimed at kids and teens, 
aged 10 and older. Adventure course play spaces provide a fun, 
challenging option for physical activity.

Variable Rolling Basis

PROS Funding Resources
 PROS Funding Resources are external opportunities which include grants, low-interest loans, and services to help 

Rhome achieve its PROS goals (e.g. adventure play ground funding, splashpad funding, etc.)

 32 different resources were found, the top 10 are listed below

October 22, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 35 of 74



Name Entity Type Services Grant Amount Deadline

5 Adventure Courses KABOOM Teen Playground
Design and build an amazing play space aimed at kids and 
teens, aged 10 and older. Adventure course play spaces provide 
a fun, challenging option for physical activity.

Variable Rolling Basis

6 Multi-Sport Courts KABOOM Sport Courts Sports courts provide communities with a wide variety of 
different sports using the same space— such as basketball, 
hockey, volleyball and many other games.

Variable Rolling Basis

7 Build it with KABOOM KABOOM Playground Receive a new, custom-designed playground
Engage community members to work toward a common goal.

Variable Rolling Basis

8 Creative Play Grants KABOOM Play Equipment Imagination Playground™ is an innovative design 
in play equipment that encourages 
creativity, communication, and collaboration in play.

Variable Contact a KABO
OM

9 Texas Urban and Rural 
Conservation Project (TURCP)

Texas NRCS/
USDA

Community Gard
en Infrastructure

Technical and financial assistance is provided 
to improve gardens for food production, 
rainwater harvesting systems, pollinator habitat for 
attracting and maintaining monarch butterflies and 
the establishment of high tunnels to extend the 
growing season of fruits and vegetables.

$4,000 - community gardens.
$3,000 - pollinator habitat.
$6,500 - construct 
a high tunnel. $5,000 -
rainwater harvesting system for 

a new/existing garden.

5/29

10 Community Development Block 
Grant (CDBG) for Rural Texas -
Community Development Fund

Texas Depart
ment 
of Agricultur
e

Infrastructure, Pa
rk Amenities

funds
are used for Public Facilities (water/wastewater infrastructure, 
street and drainage improvements
and housing activities)

Max Award: $275,000 -
$800,000 (varies by region)

2/1

Funding Opportunities & PROS Resources (Cont.)

October 22, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 36 of 74



Land Trust – Conservation Easement
• Including the city of Rhome, 85 % of all Texans live in urban areas, and due to rapid urbanization and land use 

modifications steadily displacing natural habitats, productive agricultural lands, and scenic open spaces.

• Conservation easement is the most flexible and effective tool to apply in Large Parks (PP2,PP3,PP5) in City of 
Rhome.

• Conservation easement is a voluntary legal agreement that ensures a property will be conserved and 
maintained for some specified conservation purpose, determined by the landowner. It can assist landowners 
who wish to permanently protect their farm or ranch land, wildlife habitat, open space, water resources, scenic 
views, historic buildings, or archaeological sites.

• Benefits for Rhome residents: Residents can consider the trade-offs between immediate and long-term tax or 
income benefits resulting from donating or selling a conservation easement and placing permanent restrictions 
on land use. Meanwhile the natural area will be conserved.

• The land trust or public entity that holds the conservation easement bears the responsibility of enforcing its 
terms, in perpetuity.

Source: Texas Land Trust Council-Conservation Easment,2018

October 22, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 37 of 74



Name of Trust Mission Statement

The Trust for Public 
Land

Create parks and protect land for people – for you – ensuring healthy, livable communities for generations to come.
www.tpl.org/our-work/texas

The Katy Prairie 
Conservancy

Protect greenspace for its conservation and recreational benefits, enhance wildlife habitat, restore tallgrass prairie and 
wetlands, sponsor scientific research, and offer public programming and activities to introduce the general and school-aged 
public to the sights and sounds of the prairie.
www.katyprairie.org

Upper Trinity 
Conservation Trust

Protecting natural features in the riparian zone along creeks and streams, helping to safeguard the quality of the water we 
drink, the air we breathe and the food we eat and right where we live.
www.utct.org

Native Prairies 
Association of Texas

Conservation, restoration, and appreciation of native prairies, savannas, and other grasslands in Texas. The NPAT is a non-
profit membership organization.
https://texasprairie.org/

Connemara 
Conservancy

Connemara works with farmers, ranchers and other landowners as well as city officials and forward-thinking developers to 
protect over 6,000 acres of land throughout North Texas.
www.connemaraconservancy.org

Texas Land 
Conservancy

Conserve natural areas in Texas and to protect the physical and ecological integrity of their wildlife habitat, native plant 
communities, and scenic landscapes for the benefit of present and future generations.
www.texaslandconservancy.org

Audubon Texas
conserving and restoring natural ecosystems, focusing on birds, other wildlife, and their habitats for the benefit of humanity 
and the earth’s biological diversity.
www.txaudubon.org

The Nature 
Conservancy -
Texas Chapter

Conserve the land and waters on which all life depends.
www.nature.org/texas

Land Trusts – Strategies for PP5, PP3, & PP2

October 22, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 38 of 74

https://www.tpl.org/our-work/texas
http://c/Users/nusra/Desktop/www.katyprairie.org
http://www.utct.org/
https://texasprairie.org/
http://www.connemaraconservancy.org/
https://texaslandconservancy.org/
https://tx.audubon.org/
http://www.nature.org/texas/


 Most recent inventory data

 Updated needs assessment

 Priorities

 New Implementation plan

TWPD PROS Master Plan Monitoring

 Updates to the master plan are recommended every 5 years

 A new master plan is recommended every 10 years

 It is important to re-evaluate:
 Demographics 

 Population projections

 Goals and objectives

 Standards, and 

 Maps

 Accomplishments

 Public input
October 22, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 39 of 74



AGENDA ITEM - G 

 

October 22, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 40 of 74



 
 

 

Agenda Commentary 
 

Meeting Date:  Thursday, October 22, 2020 

Department:  Administration            Contact:  Shannon Montgomery 

Agenda Item:  

G.  Discussion and any necessary action regarding filling vacancies on the Planning & Zoning Commission 

Type of Item:   ___Ordinance  ___Resolution  ___Contract/Agreement  ___Public Hearing

  ___Plat   X Discussion & Direction  ___Other 

Summary‐Background:  

There are two vacancies on the Planning & Zoning Commission.   The City began advertising on Friday, 

October 16, 2020.  The City has received one application thus far, and both alternates, Kristi King and Jo 

Ann Wilson have both expressed their interest in moving to a seated position. 

 

Funding Expected:   ___Revenue  ___Expenditure  ___N/A   Budgeted Item: 

  ___Yes ___No  ___N/A 

Funding Account:  ________________________  Amount: ________________ 

Legal Review Required: ___N/A   __ _Required  Date Completed:  

Engineering Review ____ FD Review __ ___ PD Review_____ PW Review _____ 

 

Supporting Documents attached:  

Application received since advertising began. 

 

 

 

Recommendation:  

 

 

October 22, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 41 of 74



October 22, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 42 of 74



AGENDA ITEMS H & I 

October 22, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 43 of 74



 
 

 

Agenda Commentary 

 

Meeting Date:  October 22, 2020 

Department: Planning & Zoning           Contact: Cynthia Northrop 

Agenda Item H & I:  Public Hearing and Action Item 

Discussion and any necessary action  considering a  recommendation  from P&Z  to Council  regarding a 

request for a Carport at legal property being legal: Acres: .209, Lot 2, Blk 1, Subd: ROLLING HILLS ADDITION 

also known as 321 Redbud, Rhome, Texas 76078 

Type of Item:   ___Ordinance  ___Resolution  ___Contract/Agreement  _X__Public Hearing

  ___Plat   ___Discussion & Direction  ___Other 

Summary‐Background:  Property  owner, Mr.  Randy Murdock  is  requesting  to  build  a  carport  at  321 

Redbud. Carports are regulated  in our Building Ordinance, Chapter 3, Section 3.03.056, as well as our 

Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 14, Section 32.5 and Section 33A (Old Town Rhome Overlay). See attached 

document.  

Carports must be at least ten feet (10 ft.) from the property line and at least five feet (5 ft), from the public 

right‐of‐way. Additionally,  since Mr. Murdock  resides within  the  current boundaries of  the Old Town 

Rhome Overlay District, it provides special exceptions with respect to carports which extend twenty‐five 

feet (25 feet) front set back.  

Mr. Murdock meets all  requirements except  for  the 10  ft  from  side property  line and  is asking  for a 

variance as it is 7.5 ft from property to driveway (see attached photos).   

As background information, P&Z recently recommended Council approve a similar carport request that 

did not meet the 10 ft. from property line requirement with caveat subject to Council granting a variance 

(March P&Z) 

Funding Expected: ___Revenue ___Expenditure   __X_N/A   Budgeted Item: ___Yes  ___No  ___N/A 

Funding Account:________________________  Amount: ________________ 

Legal Review Required: _X__N/A    ___Required  Date Completed:  

Engineering Review ____ FD Review _____ PD Review_____ PW Review _____ 

Recommendation: Determine whether  to accept P&Z  recommendation  to approve  subject  to Council 

granting a variance to the 10 ft from property line requirement. 

 

 

October 22, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 44 of 74



October 22, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 45 of 74



October 22, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 46 of 74



October 22, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 47 of 74



October 22, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 48 of 74



Sec. 3.03.056     Carports/building standards 

After  the passage of  this section, any permitted carport within  the city  limits shall be built  to  the 
standards applicable to such structures under the existing building code of the city but shall also be 
built  in such a manner that  its appearance  is  in conformity with that of the residential structure to 
which it is attached or which it serves. Such structures must also be at least ten feet (10') from the 
property  line and at  least  five  feet  (5')  from  the public  right‐of‐way.  (Ordinance 2014‐06 adopted 
6/16/14) 
 
 
32.5  REGULATIONS GOVERNING CONSTRUCTION OF CARPORTS IN SINGLE‐FAMILY RESIDENTIAL 

ZONING DISTRICTS: 

In order to obtain a Specific Use Permit to construct a Carport, a property owner must apply for a 
Specific  Use  Permit,  submit  detailed  construction  plans  showing  the  proposed  location  on  the 
property,  all  dimensions,  and  the  building materials  and  finishes  that will  be  used,  and  pay  the 
applicable fee. After required legal notices are sent and published, the application and plans will be 
submitted to the City planning and code enforcement departments or consultants for comment, and 
then  to  the Planning and Zoning Commission  in a public hearing  for  review and presentation of a 
recommendation to the City Council. Thereafter, after required legal notices are sent and published, 
the plans, application and the Planning and Zoning Commission's recommendation will be submitted 
for approval to the City Council in a public hearing. If approved by the City Council, the applicant must 
then within 30 days of approval of the Specific Use Permit submit the Specific Use Permit with an 
application  for  a  building permit  and  pay  the  associated  fee.  The City's  planning departments or 
consultants will review the application and proposed plans for compliance with the conditions, if any, 
imposed by the City Council on issuance of the Specific Use Permit and if the application is approved, 
the City will issue a building permit. The applicant must complete the construction of the proposed 
carport  within  90  days  of  issuance  of  the  building  permit.  The  City's  inspection  department  or 
consultant will  perform  periodic  and  final  inspections  to  ensure  the  conditions,  regulations  and 
guidelines set forth in the Specific Use Permit and building permit have all been met. 

No carport will be permitted on any vacant lot, and can only be constructed in conjunction with and 
as an accessory use to an existing residential structure. Any carport must be constructed to appear 
similar in materials and design to the existing residential structure and be compatible with the existing 
residential structure and with surrounding properties. In determining whether to recommend and/or 
issue a Specific Use Permit, the Planning and Zoning Commission and the City Council shall consider 
whether the proposed use is compatible with the property and surrounding property, and whether 
the design and appearance of  the proposed use  is  similar  in materials and design  to  the existing 
residential structure and is complimentary to the existing residential structure on the property and to 
surrounding properties. 

(Ordinance 2016‐6, sec. 2, adopted 3/10/16) 
 
 

SECTION 33A 
OLD TOWN RHOME 

33.A.1.     OTR ‐ OLD TOWN RHOME 

There is hereby created an overlay district within certain areas of the City which shall be designated 
as Old Town Rhome and such is, herein, more particularly described on the map attached to Ordinance 
2004‐03 which is also hereby incorporated within this section and the overall Zoning Ordinance. 

   

October 22, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 49 of 74



33.A.2.     IMPLEMENTATION AND DESCRIPTION 

Regulations and requirements for the OTR overlay district: 

a.    Only those uses specified in the base zoning for these districts may be allowed as provided in the 
overall Zoning Ordinance. 

b.   Submission of Old Town Rhome Site Plan. Anyone desiring to build a new residential structure in 
the  overlay  district must  first  submit  a  site  plan  showing  a  survey which  will  also  show  all 
easements and public facilities and a footprint for the proposed buildings. Such site plan will also 
show the following: 

(1)  Off‐street parking: Two (2) off‐street parking spaces shall be required for each residence at 
each  location which shall be constructed of  four‐inch  (4")  thick  reinforced concrete  to  the 
property line. 

(2)  Rear yard setback requirements shall be a minimum of fifteen feet (15'). 

(3)  Front yard setback shall be twenty‐five feet (25') from the front property line, excluding decks, 
awnings and carports. 

(4)  Side yard setback minimum shall be five feet (5') and, on a corner lot, fifteen feet (15') towards 
the cornering streets. 

(5)  Setbacks to garage shall be a minimum of twenty‐five feet (25'). 

(6)  Rear yard will be  fenced with a privacy  fence, which shall be a minimum of six  feet  (6')  in 
height, or a chain‐link fence. 

All such submissions shall be reviewed by the Planning and Zoning Commission and forwarded with 
recommendations for review, modification and action by the City Council. Upon approval by the City 
Council all approved provisions of the site plan will be mandatory for the proposed development. 
 
 
33.A.3.     SPECIAL EXCEPTIONS 

a.    Special Exceptions are hereby authorized within the boundaries of the Old Town Rhome overlay 
district, regardless of the use district at each location, with respect to carports, decks and awnings 
which extend  into  the  twenty‐five  foot  (25')  setback on  the  front of any  structure within  the 
district. These special exceptions shall be only granted  through  the normal procedures  for  the 
granting of special exceptions and are to be according to the normal standards for the granting of 
special exceptions anywhere within this ordinance. 

 

October 22, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 50 of 74



321 Redbud – Carport Variance Request 

It is 7.5 ft from driveway to fence line 

 
 

 

October 22, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 51 of 74



 
 
 

 

 
 

TO:  Wise County Messenger  DATE:  October 8, 2020 

FROM:  Shannon Montgomery, TRMC 
City Secretary 

PAGES:  1 

RUN 
DATE: 

1 Time: 
Friday, October 9, 2020 

SUBJECT:  Legal Notices  

 
 

CITY OF RHOME, TEXAS 
NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
REQUEST FOR CARPORT 

The City of Rhome City Council will hold a virtual Public Hearing on Thursday, October 22, 2020, at 6:30 
pm for the purpose of considering a Carport Request for: 

Legal property being acres: Legal: Acres: 0.209, Lot: 2, Blk: 1, Subd: ROLLING HILLS ADDITION also known 

as 321 Redbud, Rhome, Texas 76078; 

Please check www.cityofrhome.com for meeting details.  You are welcome to attend the Public Hearing 
to provide oral testimony.  Written testimony will also be accepted, addressed to Shannon Montgomery, 
City  Secretary,  City  of  Rhome,  PO  Box  228,  Rhome,  Texas  76078  or  by  email  to 
citysecretary@cityofrhome.com.  

   

 

"Crossroads to the Metroplex" 

October 22, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 52 of 74



  501 South Main Street | PO Box 228   

Rhome, Texas 76078 

Telephone:  817‐636‐2462  

www.cityofrhome.com | citysecretary@cityofrhome.com  

 

 

"Crossroads to the Metroplex" 

October 9, 2020 
 
Property Owner(s) 
NAME 
STREET ADDRESS 
CITY STATE ZIP 
 
RE:  Public Hearing for Carport Request 
 
Dear Property Owner; 
 
This letter is notification that the Rhome City Council Public Hearing scheduled for October 8, 2020 has 
been rescheduled to Thursday, October 22, 2020.   The Rhome City Council will hold the virtual Public 
Hearing to consider a Carport Request for the property listed below: 
 
Legal property being acres: Legal: Acres: 0.209, Lot: 2, Blk: 1, Subd: ROLLING HILLS ADDITION also known 
as 321 Redbud, Rhome, Texas 76078. 
 
You are welcome to attend the virtual Public Hear to provide oral testimony, the agenda packet will be 
posted  no  later  than  6:00pm  on  Monday,  October  19,  2020  (72  hours  prior  to  the  meeting)  at 
http://www.cityofrhome.com.  The agenda will have the dial in information and instructions on how to 
provide comment.  You may also return the enclosed Notification Reply Form in person to City Hall, 501 
South Main Street, Rhome, Texas, by mail  to PO Box 228, Rhome, Texas 76078, or by email  to City 
Secretary Shannon Montgomery at citysecretary@cityofrhome.com.    
 
Please do not hesitate to contact City Administrator Cynthia Northrop at 817‐636‐2462 or by email at 
cityadministrator@cityofrhome.com if you have any questions or concerns regarding this request. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
Shannon Montgomery, TRMC 
City Secretary 
 
 
Encls. 
 

October 22, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 53 of 74



 
 
 

 

 
 

TO:  Wise County Messenger  DATE:  October 8, 2020 

FROM:  Shannon Montgomery, TRMC 
City Secretary 

PAGES:  1 

RUN 
DATE: 

1 Time: 
Friday, October 9, 2020 

SUBJECT:  Legal Notices  

 
 

CITY OF RHOME, TEXAS 
NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
REQUEST FOR CARPORT 

The City of Rhome City Council will hold a virtual Public Hearing on Thursday, October 22, 2020, at 6:30 
pm for the purpose of considering a Carport Request for: 

Legal property being acres: Legal: Acres: 0.209, Lot: 2, Blk: 1, Subd: ROLLING HILLS ADDITION also known 

as 321 Redbud, Rhome, Texas 76078; 

Please check www.cityofrhome.com for meeting details.  You are welcome to attend the Public Hearing 
to provide oral testimony.  Written testimony will also be accepted, addressed to Shannon Montgomery, 
City  Secretary,  City  of  Rhome,  PO  Box  228,  Rhome,  Texas  76078  or  by  email  to 
citysecretary@cityofrhome.com.  

   

 

"Crossroads to the Metroplex" 

October 22, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 54 of 74



October 22, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 55 of 74



  501 South Main Street | PO Box 228   

Rhome, Texas 76078 

Telephone:  817‐636‐2462  

www.cityofrhome.com | citysecretary@cityofrhome.com  

 

 

"Crossroads to the Metroplex" 

PUBLIC HEARING NOTIFICATION REPLY 
 

Public Hearing  
Notice for 
Properties: 

Legal property being acres: Legal: Acres: 0.209, Lot: 2, Blk: 1, Subd: ROLLING HILLS 
ADDITION also known as 321 Redbud, Rhome, Texas 76078. 
 

Type of Request:  Carport  

P&Z PH Date  Monday, October 5, 2020 at 6:00 pm 

City Council PH Date:  Thursday, October 22, 2020 at 6:30 pm 
 

PLEASE PRINT LEGIBLY 

Property Owner Name: 
 

Property Owner Address: 
 

 
 

Property Owner Telephone: 
 

Property Owner Email: 
 

 
PLEASE CHECK ONE 

 

    I am IN FAVOR of the Proposed Request 
 

    I am OPPOSED to the Proposed Request 

 

COMMENTS 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 

     
Property Owner Signature    Date 

 

October 22, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 56 of 74



October 22, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 57 of 74



October 22, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 58 of 74



AGENDA ITEM - K 

 

October 22, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 59 of 74



DRAFT

October 22, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 60 of 74



DRAFT

October 22, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 61 of 74



DRAFT

October 22, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 62 of 74



DRAFT

October 22, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 63 of 74



AGENDA ITEM - N 

 

October 22, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 64 of 74



  Physical Address:  501 South Main Street  

  Mailing Address:  PO Box 228    

Rhome, Texas 76078 
Telephone:  817‐636‐2462  

www.cityofrhome.com | citysecretary@cityofrhome.com  

 

   

"Crossroads to the Metroplex" 

Mayor 
Michelle Pittman 
Di Credico 
 
 
City Council 
 
Mayor Pro‐Tem,  
Place 3 
Elaine Priest 
 
Place 1 
Josh McCabe 
 
Place 2 
Kenny Crenshaw 
 
Place 4 
Sam Eason 
 
Place 5 
Leeanne 
Mackowski 
 
 
 
City 
Administrator 
Cynthia Northrop 
 
City Attorney 
Carvan Adkins 
 
City Secretary 
Shannon 
Montgomery 
 
Fire Chief 
Darrell Fitch 
 
Police Chief 
Sam Love 
 
Public Works 
Director 
Sean Densmore 
 

MINUTES OF SPECIAL SESSION OF THE RHOME CITY COUNCIL  
Meeting Date: Tuesday, October 13, 2020 
Location:  VIA TELEPHONE CONFERENCE 

MEETING START TIME: 6:30 PM 
 

Call to Order and Establish a Quorum  

Mayor Pittman Di Credico  called  the meeting  to order  at 6:30pm,  called  roll,  and  announced  a 
quorum of Council Members present. 

Council Members Present: 
Mayor Michelle Pittman Di Credico 
Mayor Pro Tem Elaine Priest  
Council Member Josh McCabe 

Council Member Kenny Crenshaw 
Council Member Sam Eason 
Council Member Leeanne Mackowski 

City Staff Present: 
City Administrator Cynthia Northrop 
City Attorney James Donovan 
City Secretary Shannon Montgomery 

Municipal Court Clerk Kristi Adams 
Police Chief Sam Love 
Public Works Director Sean Densmore 

Public Presentations and Input  

Council received public presentations from the following: 

 Jennifer Wilson, 201 Cheyenne Trail North, Rhome, Texas 

 Stephanie Miller, 111 Cheyenne Trail South, Newark, Texas 

 Becky Goodgion, 217 Cheyenne Trail North, Rhome, Texas 

 Jo Ann Wilson, 240 West First Street, Rhome, Texas 

 Lisa Ann Wilson, 240 West First Street, Rhome, Texas ‐ read by Jo Ann Wilson 

 Kristi King, 207 Cheyenne Trail North, Rhome, Texas 

 Deborah BeCraft, 360 West Second, Rhome, Texas 

 Stasia Crunk, 215 Cheyenne Trail North, Rhome, Texas 

 Shirley Mize, 170 Russell, Rhome, Texas ‐ read by City Secretary 

Mayor Pittman Di Credico made a point of clarification stating that the bond signs referenced in the 
Public Presentations are not City sponsored signs. 
 

Announcements from Mayor and Council Members  

A. October 2020 Events: 
 Annual Fall Clean up Dumpster Days – Location behind Community Center at 261 N. School 

Road (Saturday, October 17 and Saturday, October 24, 2020, 8 am until full) 
 Annual Trunk or Treat – Location changed to 261 N. School Road (Saturday, October 31, 

2020, 6 – 8:30 pm) 
 

October 22, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 65 of 74



 
 

October 13, 2020 Council Meeting Minutes  Page 2 of 7 

Mayor Pittman Di Credico announced the listed October 2020 Events and stated that City of Rhome residents will not vote 
on the Rolling V ballot as placed in the Wise County Messenger ‐ Rolling V is separate from the City. 

Mayor Pro Tem Priest stated there will be a resident sponsored spring plant sale benefitting the Rhome Beautification 
Fund.  

Council Member McCabe congratulated Officer Pradia on his life‐saving actions while on a call. 
 

Monthly Staff Reports  

B. Departments: Administration, Building & Development, Fire Rescue, Municipal Court, Police, and Public Works   

C. Boards:  Planning & Zoning Commission Meeting Minutes 

No action taken. 
 

Regular Session – Old Business 

D. Update, discussion and any necessary action regarding  latest developments for COVID‐19 and mitigation efforts 
and actions within the City  

Mayor Pittman Di Credico stated that the Governor extended his Disaster Proclamation on October 7, 2020. 
 
E. Update, discussion and any necessary action regarding progress made on New Website Project  

Di Credico announced that the new website went live last week and thanked Staff for their work on the new website. 
 
F. Update, discussion, and any necessary action regarding Municipal Complex Project including authorization for RFP 

to be issued  

Motion made by Council Member Eason, seconded by Council Member Mackowski, approving Staff to prepare an RFP for 
the Municipal Complex Project, contingent upon the passing of the bond election, to be able to proceed in a timely fashion. 

Mayor Pittman Di Credico asked for a roll‐call vote: 

Council Member McCabe:  Aye 
Council Member Crenshaw:  Aye 
Mayor Pro‐Tem Priest:  Aye 
Council Member Eason:  Aye 
Council Member Mackowski:  Aye 

Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Council Member Eason asked the Mayor  if Agenda  Item P could be moved forward.   Mayor Pittman Di Credico moved 
Agenda Item P forward: 
P.   Update and presentation by Northwest ISD Superintendent Dr. Ryder Warren on the State of the District, Voter 

Approval Tax Rate Election and Bond Election  

Mayor Pittman Di Credico introduced Dr. Warren, who updated and addressed questions from Council on the State of the 
District, Voter Approval Tax Rate Election and Bond Election.   

(City Secretary Note:  presentation to be included with final set of minutes.) 
 
G. Update, discussion and any necessary action regarding Master Thoroughfare Plan Project  

Mayor Pittman Di Credico announced there will be a Master Thoroughfare Steering Committee meeting next week. 

October 22, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 66 of 74



 

October 13, 2020 Council Meeting Minutes    Page 3 of 7 

H. Update, discussion and any necessary action regarding Parks Master Plan Project  

Mayor Pittman Di Credico stated that there would be a Parks Master Plan Steering Committee meeting this week to discuss 
UTA’s report on the Parks Master Plan, which will also come before Council at the October 22, 2020 meeting. 
 
Council Member McCabe recused himself from Agenda Item I: 
I. Discussion and any necessary action  regarding proposed amendment of  the Comprehensive Zoning Ordinance, 

Section 33A, “OTR – OLD TOWN RHOME” by amending the boundaries of the overlay district  

Mayor Pittman Di Credico reminded Council that this agenda item was tabled from the last meeting and this agenda item 
is to discuss the proposed boundary change.  If Council wished to make changes to the proposed boundary, the process 
would need to start over – notification, Planning & Zoning Commission Public Hearing, and Council Public Hearing.   

Discussion ensued regarding the proposed boundary, purpose of the overlay district and removing the overlay district.  
Consensus of Council was to not take any action. 

No action taken, discussion only. 
 
Council Member McCabe returned to the meeting. 

Public Hearing 

J. Rhome City Council to conduct a Public Hearing to consider a request for a Carport at property being described as 
Legal: Acres: 0.209, Lot: 2, Blk: 1, Subd: ROLLING HILLS ADDITION also known as 321 Redbud, Rhome, Texas 76078  

Mayor Pittman Di Credico stated due to the rescheduling of this Council Meeting from October 8, 2020 to October 13, 
2020, the Public Hearing needed to be rescheduled to the October 22, 2020 Council Meeting.   
 

Regular Session – New Business  

K. Discussion and any necessary action regarding a request for a Carport at legal property being Legal: Acres: 0.209, 
Lot: 2, Blk: 1, Subd: ROLLING HILLS ADDITION also known as 321 Redbud, Rhome, Texas 76078 

Motion made by Council Member Eason,  seconded by Council Member Mackowski,  to  table  this agenda  item  to  the 
October 22, 2020 Council Meeting. 

Mayor Pittman Di Credico asked for a roll‐call vote: 

Council Member McCabe:  Aye 
Council Member Crenshaw:  Aye 
Mayor Pro‐Tem Priest:  Aye 
Council Member Eason:  Aye 
Council Member Mackowski:  Aye 

Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Council Member Mackowski recused herself from Agenda Item L: 
L. Discussion and any necessary action regarding a proposed Preliminary Plat for Rolling V Ranch, RVR No. 2 Phases 1‐

2, being described as 186.19 acres, 513 lots, 2.76 lots/AC, 68.90 AC, 19 open spaces out of the Smith County School 
Land Survey, Abstract No. 743 in the City of Rhome ETJ, Wise County, Texas as requested by PMB Rolling V Land, LP 

City Administrator Northrop provided backup  stating  that  this plat  is  in  the City’s ETJ,  it has been  reviewed by Staff, 
including  the  Engineer  and  all,  including  P&Z  recommend  approval  and  that  it meets  all  criteria  and  requirements.  
Northrop also stated that the approval of this plat is a ministerial duty. 

October 22, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 67 of 74



 

October 13, 2020 Council Meeting Minutes    Page 4 of 7 

Council Member Eason stated he understands that this item is ministerial.   Eason referred to the comments that were 
made during Public Presentations and asked Mr. Pincoffs if there was anyway to request green space between his new 
development and Rhome’s existing neighborhoods.   Pincoffs stated no, the plats have already been designed and the lots 
have been sold. 

Mayor Pro Tem Priest asked about the pending traffic congestion along FM3433.  Pincoffs relayed that they have been in 
conversations with TXDOT, surrounding cities, and NISD regarding the traffic issues.  Pincoffs continued by saying traffic 
studies will be required and PMB will be responsible for any improvements these traffic studies find. 

Council  Member  Crenshaw  reiterated  Council  Member  Eason’s  question  regarding  the  lots  abutting  existing 
neighborhoods.  Pincoffs stated again, not at this time. 

Motion made by Council Member Eason, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Priest, to approve Preliminary Plat for Rolling V 
Ranch, RVR No. 2 Phases 1‐2, being described as 186.19 acres, 513 lots, 2.76 lots/AC, 68.90 AC, 19 open spaces out of the 
Smith County School Land Survey, Abstract No. 743 in the City of Rhome ETJ, Wise County, Texas as presented. 

Mayor Pittman Di Credico asked for a roll‐call vote: 

Council Member McCabe:  Aye 
Council Member Crenshaw:  Against 
Mayor Pro‐Tem Priest:  Aye 
Council Member Eason:  Aye 
Council Member Mackowski:  recused 

Motion  carried 3‐1‐1 with Council Members McCabe, Priest and Eason  voting  for, Council Member Crenshaw  voting 
against and Council Member Mackowski recused. 
 
Council Member Mackowski returned to the meeting; Mayor Pro Tem Priest recused herself from Agenda Item M:  
M. Discussion and any necessary action regarding a proposed Preliminary Plat for Rolling V Ranch, RVR No. 1 Phases 1‐

3, being described as 219.23 acres, 697 lots, 3.18 lots/AC, 31 open spaces, approximately 51.06 AC out of the James 
B. Farnsworth Survey, Abstract No. 1417 & 991, Jacob Moffatt Survey, Abstract No. 554, Smith County School Land 
Survey, Abstract No. 743 in the City of Rhome ETJ, Wise County, Texas as requested by PMB Rolling V Land, LP  

Motion made by Council Member Eason, seconded by Council Member McCabe, to approve Preliminary Plat for Rolling V 
Ranch, RVR No. 1 Phases 1‐3, being described as 219.23 acres, 697 lots, 3.18 lots/AC, 31 open spaces, approximately 51.06 
AC out of the James B. Farnsworth Survey, Abstract No. 1417 & 991, Jacob Moffatt Survey, Abstract No. 554, Smith County 
School Land Survey, Abstract No. 743 in the City of Rhome ETJ, Wise County, Texas as presented. 

Mayor Pittman Di Credico asked for a roll‐call vote: 

Council Member McCabe:  Aye 
Council Member Crenshaw:  Against 
Mayor Pro‐Tem Priest:  recused 
Council Member Eason:  Aye 
Council Member Mackowski:  Against 

After Council Member Eason restated that this plat is ministerial, Council Member Mackowski changed her vote to Aye. 

Mayor Pittman Di Credico clarified the votes: 
Council Member McCabe:  Aye 
Council Member Crenshaw:  Against 
Mayor Pro‐Tem Priest:  recused 
Council Member Eason:  Aye 
Council Member Mackowski:  Aye 

October 22, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 68 of 74



 

October 13, 2020 Council Meeting Minutes    Page 5 of 7 

Motion carried 3‐1‐1 with Council Members McCabe, Mackowski and Eason voting for, Council Member Crenshaw voting 
against and Mayor Pro Tem Priest recused. 
 
N. Discussion and any necessary action regarding accepting resignation from the Planning & Zoning Commission and 

filling vacancies of the same  

City Administrator Northrop stated that the City received Robert Coleman’s resignation letter. 

Motion made by Council Member McCabe,  seconded by Council Member Eason,  to accept  the  resignation of Robert 
Coleman. 

Mayor Pittman Di Credico asked for a roll‐call vote: 

Council Member McCabe:  Aye 
Council Member Crenshaw:  Aye 
Mayor Pro‐Tem Priest:  Aye 
Council Member Eason:  Aye 
Council Member Mackowski:  Aye 

Motion carried unanimously. 

Motion made by Council Member Crenshaw,  seconded by Council Member Eason,  to  remove  filling vacancies of  the 
Planning & Zoning Commission and advertise the vacancies. 

Mayor Pittman Di Credico asked for a roll‐call vote: 

Council Member McCabe:  Aye 
Council Member Crenshaw:  Aye 
Mayor Pro‐Tem Priest:  Aye 
Council Member Eason:  Aye 
Council Member Mackowski:  Aye 

Motion carried unanimously. 
 
O. Discussion and any necessary action regarding annual review of employee benefits  

Mayor Pittman Di Credico stated that the benefit renewals came in and there is a ten percent increase in the cost of the 
medical insurance benefit, which was what was placed in the budget. 

Motion made by Council Member McCabe, seconded by Council Member Mackowski, to approve the employee benefits 
with the ten percent increase. 

Mayor Pittman Di Credico asked for a roll‐call vote: 

Council Member McCabe:  Aye 
Council Member Crenshaw:  Aye 
Mayor Pro‐Tem Priest:  Aye 
Council Member Eason:  Aye 
Council Member Mackowski:  Aye 

Motion carried unanimously. 
 

   

October 22, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 69 of 74



 

October 13, 2020 Council Meeting Minutes    Page 6 of 7 

Consent Agenda  
All items under this section are recommended for approval for the Consent Agenda.  These items are of a routine nature 
and require only brief deliberation by Council.  Council reserves the right to remove any item on the Consent Agenda for 
further deliberation. 

Q. Minutes of City Council Regular Session dated September 24, 2020 

R. Interlocal Agreement with Wise County to provide emergency services by Rhome Fire Rescue 

Motion made by Council Member McCabe, seconded by Council Member Mackowski, to approve the consent agenda 
items as presented. 

Mayor Pittman Di Credico asked for a roll‐call vote: 

Council Member McCabe:  Aye 
Council Member Crenshaw:  Aye 
Mayor Pro‐Tem Priest:  Aye 
Council Member Eason:  Aye 
Council Member Mackowski:  Aye 

Motion carried unanimously. 
 

Executive Session  

Pursuant  to  the  following designated section of  the Texas Government Code, Annotated, Chapter 551  (Texas Open 
Meetings Act), the Council may convene into executive session to discuss the following: 

S. Section 551.071 Consultation with Attorney ‐ pending or contemplated litigation, settlement offer or to seek advice 
from attorney 

a. Negotiations with City of Newark  for proposed split of City of Fort Worth extra  territorial  jurisdiction  (ETJ) 
within Rolling V Development 

b. ByWell Planned Development 

T. Section  551.072 Deliberation  regarding Real  Property  ‐  purchase,  exchange,  lease,  or  value  of  real  property  if 
deliberation  in  an  open  meeting  would  have  detrimental  effect  on  position  of  the  governmental  body  in 
negotiations with a third person  

U. Section 551.074 Personnel  – discuss  appointment,  employment,  evaluation,  reassignment, duties, discipline or 
dismissal of a public officer or employee, or hear complaint or charge against officer or employee  in executive 
session unless officer or employee requests public 

V. Section 551.087 – Deliberations regarding Economic Development Negotiations – to discuss or deliberate regarding 
commercial or financial information that the City has received from a business prospect that the City seeks to locate, 
stay or expand in or near the City and with which the City is conducting economic development negotiations 

Mayor Pittman Di Credico convened into Executive Session at 8:36pm. 
 

Reconvene into Regular Session  

W. Discussion and any necessary action as a result of Executive Session 

Mayor Pittman Di Credico reconvened into Regular Session at 9:21pm. 

No action taken as result of Executive Session. 

October 22, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 70 of 74



 

October 13, 2020 Council Meeting Minutes    Page 7 of 7 

Future Agenda Items  

Mayor Pittman Di Credico stated that Council Member Crenshaw’s request for traffic concerns along Main Street and BC 
Rhome would be included on the next agenda. 
 

Adjourn  

Motion made by Council Member McCabe, seconded by Council Member Mackowski, to adjourn. 

Mayor Pittman Di Credico asked for a roll‐call vote: 

Council Member McCabe:  Aye   
Council Member Crenshaw:  Aye 
Mayor Pro‐Tem Priest:  Aye 
Council Member Eason:  Aye 
Council Member Mackowski:  Aye 

Motion carried unanimously; meeting adjourned at 9:24pm. 

 
Minutes approved the 22nd day of October 2020. 
 
 
 
     

Michelle Pittman Di Credico, 
Mayor  

  Shannon Montgomery, TRMC 
City Secretary 

 

 

 

October 22, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 71 of 74



AGENDA ITEM - O 

 

October 22, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 72 of 74



DRAFT

October 22, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 73 of 74



DRAFT

October 22, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 74 of 74


	Council Agenda 10 22 20 FINAL Virtual
	AGENDA ITEM A
	AGENDA ITEM E
	AGENDA ITEM G
	AGENDA ITEMS H & I
	AGENDA ITEM K
	AGENDA ITEM N
	AGENDA ITEM O



